
'.!i%

....

-'" '.

r

I
r'

United Nations

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
TWENTIETH SESSWN

Official Records

CONTENTS

Page

Agenda item 23:
Implementation of the Declaration on the

Granting of Independence to Colonial Coun
tries and Peoples: reports of the Special
Committee on the Situation with regard to
the Implementation of the Declaration on the
Granting of Independence to Colonial Coun
tries and Peoples: A/5800/Rev.1, chapters
VII, IX, X and XIII-XXVI; A/6000/Rev.1,
chapters IX-XXV (continued)
General debate and oonsideration of draft

resolutions (continued) , 231

Chairman: Mr. Malid RAH NE MA (Iran).

AGENDA ITEM 23

Implementation of the Declaration on the Granting
of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples:
reports of the Special Committee on the Situation
with regard to the Implementation of the Declara
tion on the Granting of Independence to Colonial
Countries and Peoples: A/5800/Rev.l, chapters VII,
IX, X and XIII-XXVI; A/6000/Rev.l, chapters IX
XXV (continued) (A/5959 and Corr s l , A/6084,
A/6094, A/CA/L.802)

GENERAL DEBATE AND CONSIDERATION OF
DRAFT RESOLUTIONS (continued) (A/C.4/L.802)

1. Mrs. MENESES DE ALBlZU CAMPOS (Cuba)
recalled that the General Assembly had decided to
establish the Special Committee on the Situation with
regard to the Implementation of the Declaration on
the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries
and Peoples because one year after the adoption of
the Declaration in question hardly any steps had been
taken to implement its provisions; indeed, in some
regions armed action and repressive measures had
been used to prevent dependentpeoples from exercising
their right to complete independence. In General
Assembly resolution 1654 (XVI), embodying that
decision, the Assembly had noted that acts aimed at
the disruption of national unity and territorial integrity
were still being carried out in certain countries in
the process of decclonizatton, and had expressed the
conviction that any delay in the application of the
Declaration could threaten international peace and
security, It was disturbing to note that, five years
after the adoption of the Declaration, the colonial
Powers were still trying to obstruct the decolonizing
efforts of the United Nations; they had not, however,
been able to prevent the Special Committee from per-

231

FOURTH COMMITTEE, 1558th
MEETING

Tuesday, 16 November 196.'5,
at 3 p.tn,

NEW YORK

forming a useful service in the cause of the oppressed
peoples.

2. A situation which was of concern to Cuba and to
many other delegations Was that in so-called British
Gul ana. Although as far back as 1953 British Guiana
had declared itself in favour of independence under
the party led by Mr, Cheddi Jagan, and despite
the successive electoral victories of that party, the
Territory remained under colonial rule, repressive
measures were enforced, many leading patriots were in
prison, the majority party favouring independence was
prevented from governing and artificial racial strife
had been created. Indeed, the imperialists had
attempted to convert the struggle of the people against
foreign domination into a civil war. In the place of
Mr. Jagan's party, Washington and London had placed
in power a docile Government of their creation.

3, A series of futile conferences had been held in
London and an attempt was still being made to deceive
world opinion by that artifice. The administering Power
was continuing to ignore the resolutions of the United
Nations as it had done in the case of Southern Rhodesia,
where the colonialist settlers had turned against their
own masters. The General Assembly had repeatedly
pointed out to the administering Powers that the way
to avoid a catastrophe was to fix an early date for
independence. A solution would not be found through
the creation of docile governments with the blessing
of the imperialists. That was not merely a formal
blessing: The Wall Street Journal had pointed out on
11 November 1965 that the United States was rushing
$14 million in loans and grants to British Guiana
during the present year, whereas aid to Mr. Jagan's
Government in 1964 had amounted to only $200,000.
The same newspaper reported that the production of
United Kingdom sugar companies was 50 per cent
higher during- the present year than dur lng the pre
ceding year, that installations for bauxite miningwere
being expanded by the aluminum companies and that
the production of diamonds in the Territory had
doubled in relation to 1964.

4. In other Territories, too. colonial i st resistance
was conttnuing, owing to economic, political or strate
gic considerations, Plans for new military bases in the
Territories were increasing the threat to the peace
of the oppressed peoples. Military bases in all Terri
tories which had not gained independence must be
speedily and unconditionally eliminated; they must be
removed before independence and not after. Her own
country knew what it was to have a foreign military
base on its soil. imposed at the time of the imperialist
presence there. Such bases were a constant threat to
neighbouring peoples, too, and to their independence.
The New York Times of 11 November 1965 had reported
that a new United Kingdom territory, to become a miii-

A!C.4/SR.1558



232 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee

ta ry base, had been oreated out of part of Mauritius
and Seyohelles. TheTimes of London of 11 November
1965 had quotedTlie-United Kingdom Seoretary of
State for the Colonies as saying that the islands
would be available for the construction of defence
facilities by the United Kingdom and United states
Governments. The information that compensation
would be paid for the islands did not reassure her
delegation. General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV)
required states to respect the integrity of the national
territory of dependent peoples. Her delegation could
not aocept the argument that payment had been made
for the islands conoerned; no sovereign State would
allow the alienation of any part of its territory.

5. In the light of the principle of the equality of
nations large ancl small, enshrined in the Charter,
there could be no justifioation for questioning the
right of a Territory to inc1ependenoe on the basis
of its small population or area. Nor oould economic
arguments be adduced to show the incapaoity of a people
for independence, Such pretexts were used for the
purpose of maintaining bastions of coloul allsm , using
the subterfuge of artificial federations, or association
or integration with other States. Any constitutional
advance which did not give the people full control
of their destiny or which maintained imperial rule in
the form of a so-called association was unacceptable.

6. Mr, DIABATE (Guinea) said that the historic
Declaration on the Granting of Independence to Colonial
Countries and Peoples reflected not only the passionate
desire of dependent peoples for freedom but also
the recognition that the denial of freedom represented
a threat to international peace and security. While
the attainment of full sovereignty by a number of
countries since the date of the adoption of the Declara
tion was to be weloomed, his delegation condemned the
attempts of certain colonialist countries to empty
the Declaration of its essential content, which was the
political, economic and cultural liberation of the Terri
tories still under foreign rule.

7. The Declaration did not justify the handing over of
power to unrepresentative groups or puppets. In
British Guiana, for example. an explosive situation had
been created. His delegation appealed once more to
the United Kingdom not to exacerbate racial tensions
there, but to free the political prisoners and negotiate
with the true representatives of the people, namely,
the Progressive People's Party.

8. The Declaration must also be implemented effec
tively in the Territories administered by the Spanish
Government. His delegation had listened with interest
to the statement of the President of the Governing
Council of Equatorial Guinea at the Committee's
1550th meeting, but it was convinced that the higher
interests of the people of Equatorial Guinea called
for an end to foreign domination in all forms and
manifestations. Without liberty there could be no real
development.

9. His delegation would support draft resolution
A/c.4/L.802, submitted by a number of LatinAmerican
countries with a view to starting a dialogue between
the United Kingdom and Argentine Governments con
cerning the future of the Malvinas Islands.

10. Mr. PAYSSE REYES (Uruguay) said that for the
moment he would oonfine himself to the question of
the Malvinas, His delegation's position onArgentina' s
claim to sovereignty over the Malvinas had been clearly
set out by his delegation in Sub-Committee III of the
Special Committee (A/5800/Rev.1, chap. XXIII, appen
dix, paras. 35-57). In November 1964, the Special
Committee had endorseel the conclusions of the Sub
Committee and he wished to stress in particular
conclusions (2), (g), and (Q) (A/5800/Rev.1, chap. XXIII,
para. 59).

11. The draft resolution before the Committee
(A/C AIL. 802) was based on that decision of the Special
Com-nittee, He noted that Argentina had indicated
its readiness to settle the dispute direct with the
United Kingdom and that the Minister for Foreign
Affairs of Argentina had stated that there would be
no difficulty in finding a formula which would guarantee
the rights and aspirations of the people of the Mal
vinas Islands. It would thus be logical simply to in
vite the Governments of the United Kingdom and Argen
tina to continue negotiations directed towards finding'
a peaceful solution, taking into account the provtsions
of the United Nations Charter and of General Assembly
resolution 1514 (XV) and the interests of the inhabi
tants. There seemed no need to discuss the question
of rights of possession. The islands had belonged
to Spain and had passed into the possession of the
American States in 1810. The problem was to put
an end to a cle facto situation lacking all legal basis,
and that was the course prescribed by the draft
resolution.

12. Mr. CARDUCCl-ARTENISIO (Italy) said that
his delegation, which had had the opportunity of
following the constitutional developments in the Terri
tories under consideration through its participation in
the Special Committee, was satisfied in principle
with the political and constitutional situation pre
vailing in most of the Territories and supported
the steps taken by the administering Powers con
cerned towards the implementation of General Assem
bly resolution 1514 (XV), Most of the Territories en
joyed complete internal self-government and, through
elections conducted on the basis of "one manr one vote",
their inhabitants were able to express their views
on their present constitutions and on their evolution
towards self-determination and independence. In other
Territories the siutation was not so promising,
although there were special circumstances tu explain
the delays in the attainment of the goals set forth
in the relevant General Assembly resolutions.

13. The question hacj been raised whether the small
area and population of certain Territories required
that special criteria should be applied to them. It
was perhaps unfortunate that the Special Committee
had not found it possible to work out some basic
principles which could be applied to the implemen
tation of resolution 1514 (XV) in respect of such
Territories. It was surely inconceivable that islands
with a population of less than a hundred could become
independent States without giving rise to future
problems. A first step might perhaps be made bv
adapting the amplifying, if necessary, the c riteri;
ind.icated. in General Assembly resolution 1541 (XV),
which might be regarded as a kind of supplement to



the 133 years of that occupation, Argentina had con
stantly reaffirmed its rights over the islands. The
~ay to a solution clearly lay in negotiations. Argen
t111a had made clear its desire for negotiations. and
notwithstanding the United Kingdom view that the
question of sovereignty Over the islands could not be
a SUbject for negotiation, the Argentine Government
had expressed satisfaction with the United Kingdom
Government's recent acceptance of its proposal for
talks. Argentina considered that the negotiations should
be based on the decisions of the Special Committee
and be aimed at the decolonization of the islands. His
delegation must support that position as being in line
with the recommendations of the Special Committee.
It would therefore vote in favour of draft resolution
A/CA/L.802.

18. Mr. KEDADI (Tunisia) saitl that he wished first
to reaffirm Tunlsi a's complete and unconditional
attachment to the principle of decolonizntton, As
long ago as 1959, President Bourguiba had suggested
that the colonial Powers should hold a round-table
conference to decide upon the procedures for the
peaceful decolonization of the countries and peoples
under their administration. Decolonization was in
evitable and by bringing it about themselves the
colonial Powers would retain the friendship of the
colonized peoples. Although that suggestion had not
been taken up, the United Nations had, as it were,
responded to it by adopting General Assembly resolu
tion 1514 (XV) and establishingthe Special Committee.
His delegation considered that the administering Pow
ers should co-operate closely with that Committee,
in their own interests and in the interests of world
peace. Tunisia had no direct interests in any of the
Territories under consideration; its approach Was
based solely on the principles of the United Nations
Charter and the decisions taken by the United Nations
in the matter of decolonizatton.

19. The great majority of the Territories were under
the administration of the United Kingdom, which was
accordingly called upon to play a leading role in the
process of decolonization. A study of the Special
Committee's reports revealed that in some cases
the United Kingdom was make great efforts to raise
the level of living of the inhabitants in order ~o help
them on the road to self-government and independence;
the Committee should give recognition to that fact.
On the other hand, in other, more advanced, Terri
tories the administering Power Was intervening in
order to direct events towards a situation which would
be favourable to it in the future; the case of British
Guiana was an illustration of that. In some other
Territories, namely Gibraltar and the Falkland or
Malvinas Islands, there was a dispute concerning
sovereignty. His delegation considered that in those
cases historical and geographic considerations should
be the main basis for a peaceful solution. His dele
gation was convinced that through peaceful negotia
tions an agreement could be reached under which those
Territories would be restored to Cleir orig'inal
owners and the recipient countries would pay sub
stantial compensation.

20. With regard to the other Territories under con
sideration, it seemed that the administering Powers
were duly discharging their task, although fuller
information on political and constitutional evolution

1558th meeting 16 November 1965

resolution 1514 (XV). His delegation had confidence
in .the Various countries administering the Terri
ton.es under consideration, but felt that the United
Nations could indicate some gUiclelines.

14. With regard to the Falkland or Malvinas Islands
his deleg'ation had stated its preliminary views in
Sub-Committee III of the Special Committee in Sep
tember 1964 (A/5800/Rev.1, chap. XXIII, appendix,
paras. 58-63). It had drawn attention to three
special features. Firstly, the Falkland Islands was a
small ~erritory with a small and scatterecl population,
for whioj, full political ancl economic independence
might be difficult to envls age ; on the other hand
it constituted a Non-Self-Governing Territory and
was thus within the scope of resolution 1514 (XV).
Secondly, the Territory was the subject of a sover
eignty claim on the part of another Member State;
although the General Assembly was not a court which
should be asked to decide territorial disputes, the fact
that Argentina had maintained constant reservations
concerning sovereignty over the islands was a factor
which could not be ignored. Thirdly, there appeared
to he a conflict between two principles set out both
in the United Nations Charter and in resolution 1514
(XV): namely, the principle of territorial integrity
and the principle of self-determination. The Italian
delegation felt that the national origin ofthe inhabitants
and the fluctuations of the population gave rise to
serious doubts about the possibility of strict applica
tion of the principle of self-determination to the
case. On the other hand, the geographical situation
of the islands made them a physical part of the Ameri
can continent.

15. His delegation did not consider that the problem
could be studied from a legal point of view only:
a solution should be sought through constructive and
reasonable methods. It would be unfortunate if the
problem became a source of tension between the
United Kingdom and Argentina; the best course would
therefore be to reach an understanding through
bilateral consultations. His delegation sincerely hoped
that the two Governments would find it possible to
reach an agreement which would be mutually satis
factory and would give full consideration to the legiti
mate interests and special circumstances of the people
who had made the islands their home. In his delega
tlon's view, the problem was more a problem of a
colonial Territory than of a colonial people. The sacred
role of the United Nations as the guardian of indigenous
populations under colonial rule was hardly relevant
in the present problem.

16. His delegation would vote in fa vour of draft resolu
tion A/ C. 4/L. 802. The methods suggested in it were
in line with the United Nations Charter and might
help towards the settlement of the dispute between
two friendly countries.

17. Mr. GRINBERG (Bulgaria) said that he would
confine his remarks at present to the question of
the Malvinas or Falkland Islands. In the Special
Committee and in its Sub-Committee III, his dele
gation had voted in favour of the conclusions and
recommendations appearing in document A/5800/
Rev.1, chapter XXIII, paragraph 59. The United
Kingdom's occupation of the islands had had all
the characteristic features of colonialism. Throughout

) .

,," '.

..

r' .

I,

,,'

I..

I - •
~~ ..

,

" .



234 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee

~ .

would have been desirable. As an African country
Tunisia could not long tolerate the continuation of
foreign rule in Africa, At the Committee's 1550th
meeting the President of the Governing Council of
Equatorial Guinea had described the situation in his
country, but it was to be noted that he had not seemed
at all anxious that his country should accede to inde
pendence as speedily as possible, and the Tunisian
delegation would have liked to see more stress laid
on that aspect, With regard to Ifni and Spanish
Sahara, his delegation considered that, as in the
case of Gibraltar and the Malvinas Islands, the
Territories should be returned to their original
owners. The existence of enclaves administered by
foreign Powers in the African continent could not be
accepted. It was a question of both justice and
security and, in the name of the esteem which the
African countries felt towards Spain, his delegation
appealed to that Power to renounce its sovereignty
over those two Territories.

21. The Tunisian delegation would support any draft
resolution in conformity with the position which he
had outlined,

22. Mr. THERATTIL (India) said that his delegation
would confine its remarks to a few Territories in which
changes had been introduced, or were contemplated,
which might delay the attainment of independence.

23. Among those Territories was British Guiana, a
country which on one pretext or another had been
denied freedom and independence for almost fifteen
years by the administering Power. Until re
cently British Guiana had enjoyed the greatest measure
of racial harmony and identity of interest COmmonto all
the people. It had had a Government, based on univer
sal adult suffrage, in which the present lead
ers of the two main parties of British Guiana
had been united in a single party and had worked
together for the welfare and independence of the
country. The administering Power had intervened and
suspended the Constitution and the Government; it
had then placed further obstacles in the way of the
country's attainment of freedom and independence
and had adopted various constitutional and uncon
stitutional measures designed to arrest the growth
of a truly multiracial British Guiana,

24, His delegation could not but regret the attitude
taken by the administering Power concerning the
efforts made by the Special Committee on the Situa
tion with regard to the Implementation of Granting
of Independence to Colonial Countries and Peoples
and by the General Assembly, The reports of the
Special Committee (A/5800/Rev.1, chap. VII; A/GOOO/
Rev. 1, chap. IX) clearly showed that the efforts
of the Sub-Committee of Good Officers on British
Guiana had been frustrated by the United Kingdom
Government, which had refused to allow the Sub
Committee to visit the Territory. His delegation had
no doubt that, with the full co-operation of the ad
ministering Power, the Sub-Committee and the Special
Committee would be able to play an important role
in assisting the people of British Guiana to achieve
freedom and independence. His delegation therefore
SUbmitted that the General Assembly should endorse
the work clone by the Sub-Committee of Good Offices
and enable it to function effectively by calling upon

the administering Power to co-operate fully with
it. The General Assembly should call upon the
United Kingdom to grant freedom and independence
to British Guiana without further delay, an indepen
dence based on the rule of the majority with adequate
and full safeguards for the interests of all minorities
and free elections conducted on the basis of "one
man, one vote ". The Inclian delegation reserved its
right to comment on the results of the constitutional
conference now in progress in London. It wished to
stress, however, that any decision taken in London
should be in keeping with the provisions of General
Assembly resolution 1514 (XV),

25. Turning to Mauritius, he said that the colonial
policy pursued by the United Kingdom in that Terri
tory was no different from the pattern set in other
colonial Territories. As the Committee had not been
informed of the results of the constitutional con
ference in London, it could only be assumed that the
United Kingdom Government had not yet taken any
effective steps to implement the Special Committee's
recommendations concerning Mauritius (A/5800/
Rev.1, chap. XIV, para. 159). His delegation hoped
that the United Kingdom policy in Mauritius would
be changed in order to build up a multiracial, multi
religious and multi-ethnic Mauritian nation and that the
United Kingdom Government, which proudly pro
claimed the dignity of labour and the brotherhood of
man, would grant the people of Mauritius independence
based on the equality and brotherhood of man, the
principle of universal adult suffrage and the con
cepts of democratic government and majority rule,
with. safeguards for minorities. Any solution based
on expediency and seH-interest would only result in
chaos and conflict, for which the administering
Power would bear the responsibility. The administering
Power should bear in mind the important prfnctple
set forth in operative paragraph 6 of General Assem
bly resolution 1514 (XV) and not take any steps in
regard to the future of Mauritius which would be con
trary to that principle, even if such a sacrifice
was made for national defence or any so-called
vital necessity.

26. With regard to Fiji, he noted that in the resolu
tion adopted by the Special Committee (A/5800/Rev.1,
chap. XIII, para, 119) the Committee had renewed its
request to the administering Power to adopt immediate
measures which would enable the people of Fiji
to attain freedom and independence and had further
requested the administering Power to report to it
and to the General Assembly on the implementation
of the resolution in question. More than a year had
elapsed since that request had been made and the
administering Power had not submitted any report to
the Special Committee or the General Assembly.
He hoped that the representative of the administering
Power would make a statement to the Committee
during the debate on the present item. Even the
constitutional conference recently held in London
had failed to move in the direction of the goals
set forth in General Assembly resolutions 1514 (XV)
and 1951 (XVIII). The avowed purpose of the con
ference had been to work out a constitutional frame
w?rk for Fij.i whic~ would preserve a continuing link
WIth the United Kingdom and within which further



1558th meeting - 16 November 1965 235

!
\ s

r

progress could be made in the direction of internal
self-government. It was not surprising that a con
ference beginning with those limited objectives had
failed to achieve any substantial results, although the
conference report claimed that the election system
had been modernized by the introduction of universal
adult suff'arage. On examination, however, it was
found that instead of the universally accepted system
of "one rnan, one vote", the present arrangement in
Fiji would give one man one vote in the case of some
but in the case of others it would give one man six
or eight votes. The administering Power had instituted
a complicated system of cross-voting, with equal
division of seats among unequal communities, with a
view to protecting the interests of the European
minority.

27. As his delegation had pointed out in the Special
Committee, racial discrimination was practised in
Fiji. Moreover, there was a "separate but unequal"
principle maintained for the benefit of the Europeans
and some other minority groups. He would welcome
an expla.nation of that unsatisfactory state of affairs
from the representative of the administering Power.

28. The new Legislative Council of Fiji was not
elected on a fully democratic basis and would have
little effective power, since its power to legislate
on any subject was curtailed by a number of restric
tions uncl powers reserved to the Governor. His coun
try's cwri experience and recent examples in other
United Kingdom colonial dependencies provided ample
proof that, where non-Europeans exercised a small
degree of self-government, the governors and high
commis s ioners did not hesitate to curtail the powers
of the legislatures and ministers and even to suspend
the cons titutions.

29. His delegation had brought those facts to light
in a constructive spirit and in the hope that the
administering Power would take immediate action
to implement the resolutions of the General Assembly
and the Special Committee. He could only deprecate
the lldministering Power's policy of separate elec
torates, which retarded progress towards the objec
tive of integrating the peoples of the Te'rritory. By
advocating a democratic form of government and
similar representative institutions, the United Nations
would not be pleading for the sacrifice or diminution
of the interests of any particular group or community.
On the contrary, a fully democratic constitution would
safeguard the interests of all the people of Fi.ji.
That was what the General Assembly and the Special
Committee had requested in their resolutions o~ :he
Territory and his delegation hoped that the adminta
tering Power would comply with that request.

Mr. Brace (Togo) Vice-Chairman, took the Chair.

30. Mr. SANTAMARIA (Colombia) said that ~is
delegation had often spoken out against the colomal
system and had expressed its views in support of :he
application to all peoples of the Universal Declarat~on
of Human Rights and the Declaration on the Grantmg
of Independence to Colonial Countries and peo?les. In
accordance with that position, his deleg~tlOn h.ad

1
. ys voted in favour of resolutions subm1tted with

a wa . d t the
that end in view and would contmue to 0 so 0

extent that circumstances and the provisions of the
United Nations Charter made it possible.

31. Similarly, his delegation had supported the uni
versal nature of the process of decolonization and
consequently the recognition of the principle of self
determination for all peoples. Any other course would
be contrary to the spirit of the Charter and an
obstacle to the free development of peoples.

32. His delegation would for the moment confine
itself to the question of the Malvinas, since that
was a matter which concerned the Americanconttnent.
His delegation had no doubt regarding the clear legal
title of Argentina to the Malvinas, He would not dwell
on the historic, geographic, legal, political and eco
nomic factors which confirmed the sovereign rights of
the Argentine Republic over the Territory I for they had
already been fully discussed, but would only note
that the problem had originated by an act. of force
committed in 1833 against part of the territory
which had belonged to Argentina since 1810. That
colonial situation had persisted to the present day.
in defiance of the will of all American nations, which
had solemnly proclaimed their desire to eltminnt.e
all vestiges of colonialism in the hemisphere.

33. The Malvinas was a colonial Territory and there
fore subject to the application of General Assembly
resolution 1514 (XV). In his delegation's view, how
ever, it was a Territory with special charactcristics.
It had been alienated from another State and ocnuplod
by the nationals of the administering Power. 'I'he
problem of the Malvinas was that of a territory which
had become a colony through the use of force, in
disregard of the legitimate rights of the Argentine
Republic. His delegation considered that operative
paragraph 6 of General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV)
applied to the particular case of the Malvinas and
it was in the light of that paragraph that the situation
should be examined. Failure to apply that paragraph
would be tantamount to accepting the argument that
might was right in international relations.

34. The Special Committee had unanimously approved
the recommendation in which it recognized the exis
tence of a dispute between the United Kingdom and
Argentina concerning sovereignty over the Malvinas
and invited the two Governments to enter into negotia
tions with a view to finding a peacefUl solution to
the problem. His delegation considered that the
Special Committee had adopted the proper C,OUl'S?

and it was therefore happy to be a sponsor 01 draft
resolution A/C,4/L.802, which reflected the views
of the Special Committee. He hoped that it would be
supported by an overwhelming majority of the Fourth

Committee.

35. Mr. BHUIYA (Pakistan) said that his c1elegati~~
o sidered that it was one of the General Assembly s

c n it ti . themost important duties to keep the situa ion 1ll. '

Non-SeU-Governing Territories under constan: review
and to enable the dependent peoples to ol~talll Indc
pendence in the shortest possible time. H1S Gov~rn
ment supported the vital principle of self-determ~na
tion for all peoples. No matter v:hat .int~rests a.Stat:

. ht ha e in a Territory, nothing ]ustlfied the con
mig v it . li -regard
tinuation of its control of the Ten ory 1ll ( l~ ,

of the wishes of the inhabitants. His delegatlOn was



236 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee

not prepared to compromise on the principle that all
vestiges of such control should be brought to a speedy
end, for it could never sacrifice the freedom of a
single individual for the interests of any Power.

36. His delegation questioned the frequent assertion
of the colonial Powers that many dependent peoples
were not prepared for self-government. It considered
that the fiction of primitive peoples who could not
be trusted to govern themselves had been thoroughly
discredited and it opposed the concept that colonial
domination was the best means of improving the
lot of dependent peoples. There was an urgent need
to accelerate the decolonization process.

37. His delegation endorsed the work of the Special
Committee and hoped that, by constantly pointing
out the discrepancy between the present situation
and the goal of full freedom for the dependent peoples,
the Committee would become a powerful instrument
for the liquidation of the colonial system.

38. His delegation was convinced that the appoint
ment of the Sub-Committee of Good Offices on British
Guiana had been a constructive measure and it hoped
that the negative attitude of the administering Power
would not deter the Sub-Committee from continuing
to carry out its mission. It recognized the complexity
of the situation in British Guiana and the need for
a political evolution which would bring about a
free and just multiracial society. That was a delicate
task which required the combined skill and resource
fulness and the constant attention of the entire inter
national community. For the Asian and African
countries, the evolution of a multiracial community
in British Guiana was a challenging possibility.
Afro-Asian solidarity had an indestructible foundation
which was rooted in common sufferings and depriva
tions. From the confluence of the genius of two great
peoples, there might arise in British Guiana a cultural
synthesis and a truly vital and rich civilization.

39, His delegation regarded the emergence of inde
pendence movements in many Territories as an
encouraging development and as one of the surest signs
of the political maturity of the people concerned.
It would be his delegation's endeavour to keep itself
well informed about the situation in order to satisfy
itself that those movements were allowed to grow
in an atmosphere free from repression.

40. While his delegation appreciated the information
provided about conditions in the colonial Territories,
It felt that information relating to economic conditions
should be expanded so as to show the extent to which
the natural resources of dependent Territories had
been exploited by the colonial Power as well as the
extent to which the benefits of such exploitation had
been passed on to the people. His delegation considered
the administering Powers to be under a moral as
well as a legal obligation to make all reasonable
efforts to harness the economic resources of the
Territories for which they were responsible. The
colonial Powers should encourage the establishment
of larger economic units, which could only serve
to facilitate the attainment of political independence
by the people.

41. Mr. NKAMA (Zambia) said that his delegation
considered it to be the sacred duty of all freedom-

loving peoples to take a resolute stand against the
deplorable indignities imposed by foreign domination
and exploitation. His delegation condemned foreign
domination in all its forms and manifestations.
Imperialism was the greatest enemy of mankind and
the most formidable obstacle in the way of the economic
and social rehabilitation of all the peoples of the
world. Unless it was eliminated without delay, nations
could not hope to live in peace and harmony. Foreign
rule was incompatible with the fundamental principles
and democracy; there could be no true happiness in
the world where there were masters and slaves,
self-appointed rulers and government by armed force.
Africa was determined to rid itself of foreign domin
ation not only in Africa itself but also in the islands
round the continent which were ruled by foreigners.
Those islands were an integral part of the African
continent and the authorities concerned would be
well advised not to impede the political advancement
of their inhabitants.

42. Africans were not narrow-minded or parochial;
they were broad-minded and peace-loving people who
believed that world peace could only be achieved
when all peoples had assumed their rightful role
of determining their own destiny. That was why they
called for the complete elimination of colonialism
and hoped that the parties concerned would not fail
to negotiate suitable solutions as soon as possible.

43. His delegation deemed it necessary to state that
Zambia was not opposed to imperialism because it
was practised by people with light skins; it abhorred
colonialism because it degraded man. His delegation's
position on the question of imperialism was based
on its love of peace and justice and on its respect
for the human person regardless of race, colour,
creed or sex.

44. His delegation would support any draft resolution
that was in keeping with the aims of the Declaration
on the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries
and Peoples.

45. Mr. DE CASTRO (Philippines) said that the Non
Self-Governing Territories could be divided into the
following categories; comparatively large areas with
sufficient inhabitants to lead an independent political
existence; Territories which had freely expressed
their preference for a type of political status in the
exercise of their right to self-determination; Terri
tories where the question of sovereignty was involved;
and islands with a small population and limited eco
nomic potentialities.

46. With regard to the question of sovereignty over
the Falkland or Malvinas Islands and Gibraltar, his
delegation was pleased to note that there was apparent
agreement between the parties concerned to negotiate
the differences. There appeared to be sufficient
legal basis under operative paragraph 6 of General
Assembly resolution 1514 (XV) for substantiating the
claims of Argentina and Spain to those Territories.
His delegation would vote in favour of draft resolu
tion A/C.4/L.802. His delegation regarded Gibraltar
as an integral part of the territory of Spain and thought
that that factor should be taken into account in seeking
a solution to the problem.

•

•• if

FJ

!,.
\

rr~
..

l.,
.f'"

(
~ '-
r~

I



1558th meeting - 16 November 1965 237

47. With regard to Territories which had freely
expressed their preference for a particular type of
political status in the exercise of their right to self
determination, he pointed out that the purpose of
the plebiscite held in Fernando P60 and Rfo Muni
had been to determine whether O}' not the people
accepted the Basic Law establishing a system of self
government for the Territories. The returns had shown
that the population had accepted the Basic Law by an
overwhelming majority. A large delegation had gone
to Madrid to discuss the form of self-government
with the Spanish authorities and had unanimously
opted for a unified Equatorial Guinea and for the
self-government which they now enjoyed. It was
thus not correct to say that the Spanish Govern
ment had not yet taken steps to implement the
Declaration on the Granting of Independence to Colonial
Countries and Peoples in those Territories.

48. With regard to Guam, he noted that in 1962
the Sixth Guam Legislature had declared that Guam
was an integral part of the United States, that its
citizens were citizens of the United States and that
it had no further desire than for continued association
with the United States (A/5800/Rev.1, chap. XVII,
para. 35). Those were views expressed by representa
tives who had been elected by universal suffrage.

49. The Territories of British Guiana and Fiji were
large enough and sufficiently populated to enable them
to lead an independent political existence. They had
the economic means to support their political institu
tions and could provide their people with a moderately
high level of living. His delegation therefore hoped
that the administering Power would take steps to
implement as soon as possible the General Assembly
resolutions calling for the granting of independence
to the people of those Territories.

50. With regard to those Territories which were
small islands or groups of small islands without
favourable economic potentialities, he welcomed
the Italian representative's suggestion that the United
Nations should propose guidel.lnes forthe implementa
tion of General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV) with
respect to such Territories. Classic independence
might not necessarily be the best solution for them
and it might be to their advantage to be associated
with another State. For the time being, however,
the important thing was that the administering Power
should allow the people to participate to an increasing
degree in the administration of the Territories and
provide them with a higher level of living, better
education and greater economic security.

51. Mr. ABDEL-WAHAB (United Arab Republic] said
that his delegation fully supported. the recommenda
tions and conclusions of the Special Committee and
hoped that the administering Powers would implement
the recommendations faithfully in order to enable
the people of the Territories to exercise their
right to self-determination. It was the considered
view of his delegation that all dependent peoples
were entitled to exercise their right to self-deter
mination and that all colonial Territories, large and
small, should attain independence in conformity with
the United Nations Charter and General Assembly
resolution 1514 (XV). The difficulties facing some of
the Territories were not insurmountable and the

Special Committee should examine ways and means
by which the people of those Territories could
achieve freedom and independence.

52, He noted with regret that in most of the Terri
tories the pace of political advance and constitutional
progress was too slow, that the steps taken by the
administering Powers fell short of the provisions of
resolution 1514 (XV), and that in most cases the
policy of the administering Powers was designed to
serve their own strategic and economic interests
rather than the well-being of the inhabitants of
the Territories. The United Nations should protect
the people of those Territories against abuses by the
administering Powers and the Special Committee
should dispatch visiting missions to the various Terri
tories to investigate conditions and to ascertain the
wishes of the people.

53, On the question of the Falkland or Malvinas
Islands, his delegation had listened with sympathy
to the statements made by the representatives of
Argentina, Venezuela, Peru and others on a problem
which had arisen as a result of military action by
the United Kingdom. In its recommendations the
Special Committee had invited the Governments of
the United Kingdom and Argentina to enter into nego
tiations in order to find a peaceful solution. His
delegation fully supported the draft resolution to that
effect now before the Committee (A/C.4/L.802).

54. Gibraltar had been the subject of a similar
recommendation by the Special Committee, which had
invited the Governments of the United Kingdom and
Spain to begin talks in order to reach a negotiated
solution (A/5800/Rev.l, chap. X, para. 209), His
delegation fully supported that recommendation.

55. His delegation was deeply concerned about the
situation in British Guiana and felt that every effort
should be made to ensure that the Territory achieved
independence in an atmosphere of harmony and
peace. He supported the Liberian representative's
proposal at the 1553rd meeting that a United Nations
commission should be established to assist the people
of the Territory in solving the problems facing them
on the eve of independence.

56. Mr. BOZOVIC (Yugoslavia) said that, from the
number of Territories with which the Committee
was dealing at the present session, it was clear
that the desiredprogress in decolonization had not been
achieved. It had often been said by the colonial
Powers that the fact that there were still so many
colonial Territories was the result of specific con
ditions, such as their small size and population, their
under-development and low economic potential. That
naturally made the process of decolonization more
complex, but he had no doubt that the Declaration on the
Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries and
Peoples applied to all colonial Territories.

57. There were other factors, too. that determined
the action of the colonial Powers in slowing down the
process of decolonization. The problem was one of
a conflict between the just aspirations of the people
of the Territories and the interests of the colonial
Powers. Many of the remaining colonies were situated
in the vicinity of areas from which foreign domina
tion had been eliminated and it was logical that the



t
"'r

1-

62. His delegation would support draft resolution
A!C.4/L.802 of the Falkland Islands (Malvtnas) ,

63. Mr. SANGHO (Mali) said that his delegation fully
supported draft resolution A!C,4/L.802 and welcomed
the spirit which had inspired it. The geographical,
historical and legal considerations involved in the
dispute between the United Kingdom and Argentina
had already been stated in the Committee. The
Territory was geographically a part of Latin America
and before the United Kingdom had taken it by force
it had been inhabited by the people of Argentina. The
Governments of the United Kingdom and Argentina
should be invited to open negotiations without delay.

64. Mr. RAMIN (Israel) said that his delegation
had been glad to note the atmosphere of mutual friend
ship and respect which had prevailed between the
two main parties to the debate of the question of the
Falkland or Malvinas Islands. Such an atmosphere
was the most desirable point of departure in any
sincere attempt to settle a dispute. His delegation
supported draft resolution A!C.4/L.802, which invoked
the use of direct negotiations between the main parties
concerned in order to find a peaceful solution, in
accordance with the United Nations Charter and
General Assembly resolution 1514 (XV). The principle
of direct negotiation was one of the most important
principles on which the United Nations was founded
and it must be encouraged as the most fruitful
approach in the present as well as in the future.
The Latin American countries which had sponsored
the draft r-esolution had been eloquent exponents of
that principle in relation to countries or disputes in
regions other than their own and their sincerity should
be recognized when they sought its application in their
own hemisphere.

65. Ml'. SICLAIT (Haiti) said that his delegation had
joined the sponsors of draft resolution A/C.4/L.802,
on the Falkland Islands (Malvinas) , hecause it con
sidered it essential that General Assembly resolu
tion 1514 (XV) should be implemented in those islands.
The emancipation of the people of his hemispnere
would never be complete as long as any vestiges
of colonialism remained. His delegation had wel
comed the recommendation of the Special Committee
on the subject and felt that, if the Governments of
the United Kingdom and Argentina agreed to negotiate
in a spirit of understanding and goodwill, the right
solution would undoubtedly be found. The interests
of the inhabitants must, of course, be sufegunrded
and the Government of Argentina hac! mude it clear
that it would do so. The draft resolution was worded
in moderate terms and should receive almost unani
mous support.

66. Mr. ELDEM (Turkey) said that the question of
the Falkland or Malvinas Islands, to which General
Assembly resolution 1514 (XV) was applicable, pre
sented special features which distinguished the Terri
tory from other Non-Self-Governing Territories.
Those features should be borne in mind in deciding
how resolution 1514 (XV) should be implemented in
the Territory. The islands constituted a small Terri
tory with a limited economic potential and it was hard

61. He had been surprised at the report published
in the New York Herald Tribune on 11 October 1965
to the effect that the United Kingdom was acquiring
four Indian Ocean atolls from two of its colonies,
Mauritius and the Seychelles, and would develop
them jointly with the United States as defence bases.
The United Kingdom was not entitled to part with

60. Specific conditions, such as size and small
population, far from justifying slow progress, called
for greater efforts and for the United Nations to
play a greater role in ensuring the adoption of
measures designed to enable the inhabitants of colonial
Tel'l'itories freely to express their wishes regarding
their future. It was not sufficient to ensure the presence
of the United Nations during the elections and for a
few days before or after them: it was imperative that
the United Nations should play an active part in the
whole process. The Special Committee should consider
sending small missions to various Territories not only
to ascertain the situation but to assess the possibilities
for progress. It was hard to understand the arguments
that Non-Self-Governing Territories were an internal
matter for the colonial Powers; Chapter XI of the
Charter made it clear that the colonial question had
ceased to be an internal one.

238

coloniaL Powers and other countries interested in the
continued exploitation of the wealth and labour of others
should endavour to preserve for as long as possible
positions from which they could undermine the inde
pendence and obstruct the development of the newly
independent countries. There was a surprising lack
of wiLlingness on the part of some countries to und~r

stand the extent and significance of the changes which
were taking place in the world.

58. The colonial Powers appeared to be determined
to make the granting of independence to coLonies
dependent upon the adoption of a given political
system or the removal from power of a political
party or government elected by the population. Those
more directly involved with decolonization might have
wondered who was responsible for postponing inde
pendence in British Gui ana, The administering Power
had acted in complete disregard of the seLf-governing
status of the Territory and of the fact that the Govern
ment had been elected three times by the majority
of the population. Racial considerations had not been
the source of the conflict. As the United Kingdom
Secretary of State for the Colonies had said, the cause
of the difficulties was basically political, not social,
and it required a political solution. Yet the solution
found was racial in character and had given rise
to the present difficulties in the Territory.

59. The fact that there were still so many colonial
Territories was primarily the result of the lack of
readiness of the colonial Powers to adjust their
policies and actions to the changes in the world
and to the requirements of present-day development.
As was clear from the reports of the Special Com
mittee, the administering Powers had done nothing
to implement the recommendations of the Special
Committee and the General Assembly. It was difficult
for any state openly to oppose rapid decolonization but
the absence of measures to promote it amounted to
the same thing.

General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee
---------- part of its colonies and should be asked not to pro-

ceed w:.n the transaction until it had been considered.



1558th meeting - 16 November 1965 239

to envisage it ever becoming an independent State.
The population was small and not indigenous and
did not demand independent political status. The
guiding principles. such as self-determination, which
were valid in the majority of Non-Self-Governing
Territories were not valid in the present case. New
criteria that would be applicable to such special
cases should be found.

67. The problem was not one of decolonization alone,
but one of sovereignty. The population appeared to be
in favour of a link with the United Kingdom, but
Argentina had put forward strong historical and
geographical arguments on its side and had, moreover,
never recognized United Kingdom sovereignty over
the islands. The Committee was not competent to
decide on a question of sovereignty, but resolution 1514
(XV) could only be implemented in the Territory
once the dispute over sovereignty had been settled.
He was happy to hear that tile United Kingdom Govern
ment had accepted the invitation of the Argentine
Government to begin negotiations. Ifthose discussions
took place, the two countries would have given the
world an example of fruitful co-operation with a view
to obtaining a peaceful settlement of their differences,
while safeguarding their own interests.

68. Draft resolution A/C.4/L.802, which reflected
the spirit of conciliation of the Latin American
countries, was purely procedural and did not prejudice
the outcome of the dispute. His delegation would
vote in favour of it.

69. Mr. GBEHO (Ghana) said that he wishedto record
both his delegation's appreciation of the work and re
ports of the Special Committee and its regret that
the information in those reports did not give a correct
picture of the situation in the colonial Territories.
That was not the fault of individual members of the
Special Committee but was the result of the strict
censorship of information imposed by the administer
ing Powers.

70. His country proclaimed its views on decoloniza
tion so frequently because it could not be silent as
long as one square foot of the earth remained u~der

colonial domination. The principles of self-determm a
tion and social justice were indivisible and inviolable.
The history of colonialism had been a sordid one.
It had orig-inally been inspired by a spirit of greed
and adventure, which had been intensified in the
days of the slave trade. The rise of the industrial
revolution in Europe had created a need for more
raw materials, which had led to greater emphasis
on colonialism based on the subjugation of the peoples.
The peak had been reached in 1885, at ~h~ Congr~ss

of Berlin when European nations had divided Afnca
at the str-oke of a pen Without any consideration for
geographical, ethnic or social factors. The mind of
man did 110t rest, however, and finally in the present
century the Charter of the United Nations, the Univ~r

sal Declaration of Human Rights and the DeclaratlOn
on the Granting of Independence to Colonial Countries
and Peoples had been proclaimed.

71. The number of colonies still to be liberated
was immense and many were under United Kingdom
domination. From the reports of the Special Com
mittee it was obvious that economic conditions and

social, health and educational facilities in many of the
Territories were far from adequate. In the case of
Barbados, Mauritius and the Seychelles, for example,
it was clear that the administering Power had not
been administering the Territories in a pro
gressive manner. The administering Powers should
be made aware that colonialism imposed obli
gations. It appeared from the reports of the
Special Committee that some of the administering
Powers tried to give the impression that the people
of the Territories wanted integration with them. If
there was any geographical reason for that, he could
understand, and in any case would respect. the
wishes of the inhabitants of those Territories, but
as a member of a newly liberated country he would
advise those Territories to be cautious. Integ-ration
in practice might leave them dissatisfied.

72. It had been stated that the maintenance of mili
tary bases in colonial Territories was morally inde
fensible when it was not agreeable to the populatton,
He would like to reiterate that that was so, especially
when it was at the expense of the independence of
the Territory.

73. He regretted the existence of racial disharmony
in British Guiana and the administering Power's
delay in granting the Territory independence. The
people of the Territory had lived in racial harmony
until they had asked for independence, and he hoped
that the administering Power would See fit to grant
it without delay I in an atmosphere of racial harmony
and political progress.

74. At the Committee's 1550thmeeting, the President
of the Governing Council of Equatorial Guinea had
explained the situation in Fernando Poo and Rfo
Muni and had congr-atulated Spain on the good work
it had done. If the people of the Ter-r-itory had
indeed found liberty and spiritual guidance under'
Spain, then he could only support them. The Com
mittee had not been told, however, when Spain would
grant independence to the Territory and he wondered
whether Spain would give the Committee that
Infor'mation,

75. Mr. BROWN (United Kingdom) said that of the
forty or so Territories with which the Committee
was concerned under agenda item 23. about twenty
Were under United Kingdom administration.

76. As the reports of the Special Committee for
1964 and 1965 demonstrated, the past two years had
been marked by steady advance in those Territories.
A number had become fully independent and were now
Members of the United Nations. There had been a
series of constitutional conferences concerning certain
of the Territories; the constitutional progress of other
Territories had been the subject of less formal con
sultations between local leaders and the United King
dom Government; and in some Territories purely local
consultations had taken place with a view to reaching
agreement on proposals for discussion with the United
Kingdom Government. In a number of 'I'errrtortes
there had been important consitutional changes, the
details of which were included in the reports of the
Special Committee. Major elections had taken place in
several more.



240 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee

77. 'I'hus , in a substantial number of the Territories
there had been continued progress towards self
wS'vernment and self-deterrnmatton-e-and in each case
'{he direction and pace of that progress had been
determined in close and continuous consultation with
local opinion, as expressed through political parties
and the other normal organs of opinion available
in a free democr atio society.

78. The Territories on which the Fourth Committee's
interest had been concentrated fell into two groups.
Firstly, there were the Territories which had given
rise to comments on constitutional questions and where
there had been recent important developments about
which the Committee might wishto be further informed,
namely Mauritius, Fiji and British Guiana. Secondly,
there was a group of Territories-Gibraltar and the
Falkland Islands-where the interest did not centre
on the normal questions of constitutional advance
with which the Fourth Committtee and the Special
Committee were generally concerned, but where the
point at issue was a claim to sovereignty over a
British Territory by another country.

79. He would deal first with the constitutional aspects
of Mauritius, Fiji and British Guiana. The report of
the Special Committee on Mauritius (A/6000/Rev.l,
chap. XrII) had been completed before the end of the
Mauritius constitutional conference, held in London
in September. All the parties represented in the
Maur-itius legislature had been represented. At the
end of the conference, the Colonial Secretary had
announced that the United Kingdom Government con
sidered it right that Mauritius should move towards
full independence. The procedures were to be as
follows. As the conference had not been able to reach
full agreement on a new electoral system, the Colonial
Secretary was to appoint a commission to make recom
mendations on the new system and on electoral
boundaries with a view to safeguarding the interests
of all communities. Once the commission had reported,
the Colonial Secretary would decide upon the new
electoral system, a general election would be held
and a new government would be formed. Independence
would follow after a period of six months of full
internal self-government if the new Legislative
Assembly passed a resolution, by a simple majority,
asking for independence. Those processes could be
completed before the end of 1966. The new constitution,
agreed upon at the conference, would include safe
guards for minority interests, a chapter on human
rights, the appointment of an ombudsman, and pro
visions to ensure that the main features of the con
stitution could not be amended unless at 'least three
quarters of the members of the Legislative Assembly
agreed.

80. Questions had been raised about the United King
dom Government's plans for certain islands in the
Indian Ocean. The facts were as follows. The islands
in question were small in area, were widely scattered
in the Indian Ocean and had a population of under
1,500 who, apart from a few officials and estate
managers, consisted of labourers from Mauritius and
Seychelles employed on copra estates, guano extraction
and the turtle industry, together with their dependants.
The Islands had been uninhabited when the United
Kingdom Government had first acquired them. They

had been attached to the Mauritius and Seychelles
Administrations purely as a matter of administrative
convenience. After discussions with the Mauritius and
Seychelles Governments-includingtheir elected mem
bers-and with their agreement, new arrangements
for the administration of the islands had been intro
duced on 8 November. The islands would no longer
be administered by those Governments but by a Com
missioner. Appropriate compensation would be paid
not only to the Governments of Muurittus and
Seychelles but also to any commercial or private
interests affected. Great care would be taken to
look after the welfare of the few local inhabitants,
and suitable arrangements for them would be dis
cussed with the Mauritius and Seychelles Govern
ments. There was thus no question of splitting up
natural territorial units. All that was involved was
was an administrative re-adjustment freely worked
out with the Governments and elected representatives
of the people concerned.

81. Fiji was another Territory on whose future a
major constitutional conference had been held since
the completion of the report of the Special Committee.
The conference, held in London in July and August,
had been attended by all eighteen of the non-official
members of the Fiji Legislative Council. The agreed
object of the conference had been to work out a
constitutional framework within which further progress
could be made towards internal self-government
and which would preserve a continuing link with the
United Kingdom. The conference had agreed that there
should be for the first time an elected majority in
the Legislative Council. There would be no nominated
non-official members and a maximum of foul' nominated
officials. The conference had also agreed that all
the minority groups which had hitherto not had the
vote should be enabled to vote and stand for election:
that concerned the Rotuman Islanders, certain other
Pacific Islanders, and the Chinese community. Fiji
would thus attain full universal adult suffrage, thereby
meeting one of the main points made in the Special
Committee during the discussion of Fiji in 1964. The
Rotuman Islanders and the other Pacific Islanders
would vote on the same rolls as the Fijians, and the
others with the European group. Because of the
enfranchisement of those groups and the consequent
effects on the representation of the three main
communities, it had been decided that the proportion
of European members would be reduced from one
of parity with the other two communities to ten.
The Fijians would now have fourteen seats, a small
increase-at the expense of the European group-taking
account of the fact that the Rotuman and other Pacific
Islanders were now to vote with them. The Indian
representation remained proportionately unchanged,
both overall and as a proportion of those elected
on the communal rolls. It had also been decided
that in future there would be nine members of the
Legislative Council elected by a cross-voting system,
under which each member would be elected by per
sons of all communities. Finally. there would be
provision in the constitution for development from
the present "membership" system, whereby members
of the Executive Council spoke for various departments
of government in the Executive Council and the legis
lature without being in administrative control ofthose



1558th meeting - 16 November 1965
---------------_----:=------------------._-_.... -

'f c>

~
, :lo. a.

~

I
\( ...

...-, .....

I

departments, into a full ministerial system whereby the
non-official members would be ministers.

82. The Fijian Indian representatives at the confer
ence had been unable to agree with some of the above
measures-in particular, the new representation of
the communities in the legislature and the retention
of the system of communal voting for some of the
members of the Legislative Counoil. They had also
felt that full internal self-government could be intro
duced forthwith. After considerable discussion, how
ever, it had becorrre clear that the Indian proposals
were not aoceptable to some of the other representa
tives at the conference and the decisions described
above had therefore been designed to produce a sltua
t ion which would be as far as possible acceptable
to all the main Fiji communities, In particular. it
was hoped that the introduotion for the first time
of a cross-voting system for some of the seats
in the legislature would be an effective first step
in breaking down the political divisions between
the different cornrnunitles in Fiji. To have moved
straight to a single common roll and the abolition
of all communal voting in one stage could well have
Iecl to the opposite result-a widening of political divi
sions among the communities. It would also have been
totally unacceptabLe to the Fijian community.

83, The United Kingdom Government hoped that the
new system would encourage political co-operation
and thus make it possible to move further towards a
national rather th.an a communal attitude in the future.
That was of course fully in line with the aims of the
resolutions of the General Assembly and the Special
Committee on Fij i and represented an important move
in the right direction. There was no, justif,ioation
whatever for any suggestion that the Umted Kmgdom
Government was encouraging or exploiting communal
divisions or special proteotion for the Eur,opeans,
whose position was hardly at issue. Its policy was
steady progress towards non -racial consciousness
and unity. It must be recognized, however: that
excessive haste in changing deep-rooted nttitudes
might well interrupt rather than help t~e process
of building up trust and political co-operaticn between
the communities in Fiji.

84. Turning to British Guiana, he pointed out th~t
there was a constitutional confere~ce on, that T,ern
tory now taking place in London, ItS ob.Ject being to
settle outstanding constitutional questions and to
fix 'L date for independence. It was hoped that the

. , , 1 t it work shortly. The
conference wou.Ld cornp eel s bl l 1
Vnited Kingdom Government had expressed pu ,1~ h
its regret that one of the two main partIes m Bntls t
G~linntl, the People's progressive, Party, dha~ ~~e
felt nble to attend. Many of the points ma e y, e

' l' the People's Progress1v
petitioner represen 111g b f th Committee
P'lrtv who had recently appeared e ore e

b
re

(;~ 4 9th meeting) would surely have een mo f
o ff ti 1 made in the course 0appropriately and e ec we y

the London conference.
ake s in the debate85. The petitioner and some spe l' , ' ,

hac! referred to the state of emerg~ncy 111 hBr:~~:
the dozen or so detalllees w 0

Guialla and to , hit make it clear that the, ' , t dy He WIS ec 0 ~
stIll 111 cUS 0 • lut al security matters

Ibilit for those In ern
resp0I1S1 1 1 Y , _ h G " a Ministers and not with the
rested with Brltls ,Ulan

United Kingdom Government, It was surely for the IICO

pie of British Guianu to settle those problems umong
themselves and to establish a basis 01' common trust
and understanding,

86, It had been suggested that some £01'111 of United
Nations mediation in British Guiunu to help reconcile
the two main political parties might be timely ami
appropriate, His delegation appreciated the spirit in
which those suggestions hacl been made, There were,
however, a number of considerations which scerno: I
to point in a contrary direction, British Guiann had
enjoyed more stability over the past year than for
some tlme. A conference to fix an independence date
was in progress, Intervention from outs lde-s-und that
was how a proposal of United Nations mediation
would be regarded-might have the most untoi-tunute
consequences and even increase ruciul ami political
divisions. A comprehensive survey of racial tension
in British Guiana had just been carried out ]Jy the
International Commission of Jurists, ancl the British
Guiana Government was now working to give effect
to the Commission's recommendations, Any oxtemal
attempt to mediate now, with British Gnialla's inlll'
pendence so near, would certainly appear in the Terri
tory to be unwarranted. British Guiana Ministurs
had been consulted and their views were generally
in accordance with what he had just sald.Moreovcr. it
was the intention of Mr. Burnham, the Premier, to
visit New York after the London conference, where
he would doubtless welcome the opportunity to talk
informally with interested delegations about the cur
rent situation.

87, The suggestions for a United Nations role would
thus be more of an obstruction than a help JOI' (he
peaceful and rapid progress of British Guiuuu to
independence. As the British Colonial see,rctary ha,d
said at the opening of the London conference, It
was in the hands of the Guiuneso people that t~lC fn,tll r e

of Guiana would soon lie and it was be their efforts
that the country's problems would be solved,

88, He turned next to the second grOllJ~ of Torriioric:,
here the question before the Comnuttec was not ,,,,0

w h one of consitutional progress to indepelHl,cl~co
muc h slt l' "l"llW1 elf-determination, but rather t e SI ua ion ,l~ ,,' '"'
amSIT it C" lJ"
f l airns to sovereignty over t le ernorl r , J
romClG'] .. Ilurother countries: the Falkland jsluuds am TIJl ,1 , ,

89 His delegation had listened carefully to the Al',gel~
t'~e representative's arguments ill support 01 Ius
1 t ' claim to sovereignty over tile FalkLuHl

coun ry s '. 1 t 'l'l 'lrg"ll-
I It did not intend to enter into l etru et •

Islanc s , , 1 ( '1ttcmpt, the Committee would not \VIS 1 0, -ments SInce , t (0 5'1"
, d the merits of the questlOn, excep . " .'

;~ ttt;: ~~Jited Kingdom Government did not accept
a A t" e representative's argumunts and CO[l-

t~e r~~n;~ve no doubts as to its sovereignty ,ov<:::1'

~~nU~~rtritory, The question of dlsrupti,ng l;l'gCl,ltll~:l :;s
e, .' " "t tneretore did not arise. rhel C W ',1•• ,

terrttor tal integr 1 y lnt t hi -h the Arg"clltllle, portant point 0 w 1(,
however, one im , . d unte 'lttention: the
~epreselltativle ,hhaeds~~~:~w~~ei% ~nse[;aralJle-oftho
I nter es t s anc WIS , 't st'lte'-" ' dele ation had shown 1Il 1 S, ,
ll1habltants, As ~sl C ~ittee the Falldandlslnnl!o1's
ments to t~e spec~u om

t
inhabitants who had !l0 other

were genullle, p~rlma~:nTheyhad shown, in thcl r rues-
home but those IS am , c

-------------=~~~-----



242 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee

sages to the Special Committee and in the formal
declaration by their elected representatives, that
they did not wish for anything other than normal,
friendly relations with Argentina, but that they did
not wish to sever their connexions with the United
-(ingdom. There were no grounds whatever for sug
gesting that their wishes should simply be set aside;
yet that was the tenor of some of the speeches in the
present debate

90. It had been suggested that the population was
somehow irrelevant on the grounds that the people were
transient, that there were no births or deaths in the
islands, that the people had been planted there by the
United Kingdom rather than being of indigenous
stock and that many of them were employed by the
Falkland Islands Company. There should be no mis
understanding about their status. The population num
bered slightly over 2,000, of whom 80 per cent had
been born in the islands. Many could trace their
roots back for more than a century in the islands.
Of course they stemmed from an immigrant com
munity; so did much of the population of North and
South America and indeed of Europe and Africa. It
would surely be fantastic to limit the principle of
self-determination to the handful of peoples who
could truthfully claim to be the descendants of indigen
ous inhabitants. There was nothing in the Charter
or in resolution 1514 (XV) to wanant such a major
restriction. In any case, it was quite wrong to sug
gest that the people were transients or that there
were 110 births or deaths in the islands. The birth
and death rates were published for all to see; they
were somewhat higher than the rates in the United
Kingdom and that alone completely refuted the picture
of a garrison, regularly replaced and "rotated", with
no settled roots in the Territory.

91. The Venezuelan and Italian representatives had
suggested that it was a question not of a colonial
people but of a colonial Territory-not human beings,
but land. That was surely not an attitude which should
commend itself to the Fourth Committee. As Woodrow
Wilson had said, people were not chattels or pawns
to be bartered about from sovereignty to sovereignty.
It had been suggested that operative paragraph 6 of
resolution 1514 (XV) should be interpreted as denying
the principle of self-determination to the inhabitants
of Territories which were the subject of a territorial
claim by another country. His delegation and others
had already produced conclusive evidence in the
Special Committee that the paragraph in question had
not been intended to limit the application of the
principle of self-determination in any way; in that
connexion he referred to paragraphs 94-98 and 146
151 of chapter X of document A/5800/Rev.I, and to
paragraph 109 ofthe annex to chapter XXIII of the same
document. Those arguments had in no way been refuted
by anything said in the present debate.

92. It was the interests and wishes of the Falkland
Islanders which were the central feature in his Gov
ernment's attitude to the Territory. The Argentine
representative had argued that the people's ,interests
would be best served if they were transfer-red to Argen
tine sovereignty. It might be so, Cl' it might not;
the point was that the Argentine Government could
not decide that for them, nor could the United Kingdom,

nor could the United Nations. It was for the people
themselves to judge where their interests lay.

93. The Argentine representative had referred to the
recommendations of the Special Committee and to the
communication from his Government to the United
Kingdom Government suggesting that talks should be
held in accordance with those recommendations. The
United Kingdom Government's position in regard to the
recommendations was fully set out in the Special
Committee's report for 1964 (A/5800/Rev.I, chap.
XXIII, paras. 29-30). Because the future of the
Falkland Islanders could not be settled over their
heads, it followed that the question of sovereignty
was not negotiable. His Government was, however,
always ready to discuss with the Argentine Govern
ment ways in which damage to their good relations
could be avoided. His Government had accordingly
replied to the Argentine invitation, expressing willing
ness to enter into discussions through diplomatic
channels, and had asked the Argentine Government to
suggest suitable topics, bearing in mind the United
Kingdomts reservations about sovereignty and respect
for the wishes and interests of the Islanders. His
delegation hoped that the discussions would take
place and that they would lead to an improvement in
the already cordial relations between the two coun
tries.

94. The draft resolution on the Falkland Islands
(A/C.4/L.802) seemed to imply that the question of
sovereignty should be the subject of negotiations.
Furthermore, it ignored the wishes of the Falkland
Islander-s themselves. His delegation therefore had
reservations on those grounds. In addition, the resolu
tion seemed unnecessary. The best course was to allow
the proposals for talks to be pursued between the
United Kingdom and Argentine Governments. The
draft resolution had no essential or valuable part to
play in that process and his delegation would abstain
if it was put to the vote. Meanwhile, he drew attention
to the erroneous use, in the draft resolution, of the
term "Mal vinas ", It was neither recognized by the
administering Power-the United Kingdom-nor con
sistent with United Nations usage, and he accordingly
repeated his request that the English text of the
draft resolution should be corrected, The use of
"Mal vinas " could not in any case affect United Kingdom
sovereignty over the islands.

95. Much of what he had said applied also to
Gibraltar. As his delegation had already made clear,
the United Kingdom was in no doubt about its sover
eignty over Gibraltar. The Spanish representative, in
his statement at the 1556th meeting, had asserted
that the United Kingdom Government was unwilling
to engage in talks and was attempting to conceal
that unwillingness behind the pretext that the frontier
restrictions, whose importance and detrimental con
se '.i.uences both for the people of Gibraltar and for
their Spanish friends and neighbours he had sought to
minimize, constituted duress. In order to demonstrate
the real nature of the obstacle to the talks asked for
by the consensus, he drew the Committee's attention
to a letter from the Spanish Minister for Foreign
Affairs addressed to the United Kingdom Ambassador
in Madrid on 18 November 1964. In thatletter, repro-



5

1558th meeting - 16 November 1965 243

)
''01;"L,
t
j ,....

duced as annex I to document A/AC.109/L.235, the
Minister had stated the following:

"Failing this negotiated solution, which is recom
mended by the consensus of the 'Special Committee'
[A/S800/Rev.1, chap. X, para.209], the Spanish
Government, having no other alternative, would
find itself compelled, in defence of its interests,
to revise its policy in regard to Gibraltar. "

In the light of the restrictions which had begun to
be imposed a month earlier, on the day following the
consensus, the terms of the letter could be clearly
seen to consitute a threat to which no State could be
expected to yield. It was that threat and its implemen
tation against Gibraltar which constituted the real
obstacle to the talks.

96. On 16 October 1964 the Special Committee had
adopted a consensus on Gibraltar, inviting the United
Kingdom and Spain to undertak conver-sations. Within
twenty-four hours of its adoption, the Spanish Govern
ment had begun to impose a series of restrictions at
the frontier between Spain and Gibraltar which were
clearly designed to influence the situation in the
Territory. Firstly, excessive delays had been im
posted on all vehicles entering or Leaving Gibral
tar; as a result, the number of tourist cars
entering Gibraltar in the first nine months of 1965
had been 5,153, as compared with 75,041 in the cor
responding period in 1964. Secondly, tourists were not
allowed to import goods into Spain from Gibraltar
without paying excessively high rates of duty. Thirdly,
all exports from Spain to Gibraltar, except fish, fruit
and vegetables, had been banned. Both the delays
to tourists and the excessive rates of duty on imports
were a breach of obligations entered into by members
of the International Union of Official Travel Organisa
tions, of which the Spanish Ministry of Information and
Tourism was a member.

97. Since the proposal for conve:rsations made by
Spain on 18 November 1964, those restrictions and
interferences with the status quo had been intensified
in the following ways. Firstly, about 1,000 persons,
most of them British subjects living in the towns
adjoining Gibraltar, had been compelled to leave
their homes at extremely short notice; some of them
had not known any other homes. Secondly, Spanish
workers had been forbidden by their Government to
spend any part of their wages earned in Gibraltar
for the purchase of groceries etc. in Gibraltar for
their use in Spain. Thirdly, certain passports issued
in Gibraltar had been rejected by Spain as unacceptable.
The hostility of the Spanish Government to the people
of Gibraltar had been further demons trated by refusing
entry into Spain of a particular class of persons. That
class included those who had appeared as petitioners
before the Special Committee and all other elected
members of the Gibraltar Legislative Council, certain
journalists and others. Yet in his statement before
the Committee the Spanish representative had mini
mized the extent and effect of the restrictions and had
suggested that the responsibility for not complying
with the consensus rested with the United Kingdom.
That was clearly not so.

98. There was an important principle involved. If
two parties to a dispute were called on to try to reach

a peaceful solution by means of talks, it was surely
inadmissible that either party should attempt to influ
ence the results of those talks by applying political
or economic pressures in advance of them. Thepres
sures applied by Spain had been instituted after the
consensus had been adopted by the Committee; in other
words, the consensus had been reached in one parttcu
1ar set of circumstances, which had been unilaterally
altered by Spain within twenty-four hours of its
adoption. To expect his Government to entertain pro
posals for conversations under those new conditions
would be tantamount to accepting the principle that
it was legitimate to attempt to influence, by political
or economic duress, the situation in a Territory
which was the subject of a consensus-a principle
which neithe:r the United Nations nor any of its Mem
bers would be prepared to subscribe to.

99. Coustderation must also be given to the practical
effects of the restrictions imposed by the Spanish
Government. The economic effects on Gibraltar and
on the neighbouring Spanish towns were grave. The
restrictions amounted to an economic blockade which,
accompanied by a campaign of vilification by the Span
ish Press and radio, was designed to hurt the people
of Gibraltar and hence to influence the situation in
what Spain believed to be its own interests. The
Spanish Government had asserted that those mea
sures were a mere reflection of the exercise of
Spain's sovereignty in its own territory, but that was
beside the point. His Government had not said that
the Spanish Government was acting illegally in im
posing the restrictions. What it had said was that the
restrictions constituted an attempt to influence the
situation and that they were abnormal.

100. The Spanish representative had also suggested
that the measures were designed as a cheek 011

smuggling. In the past, Spanish representatives had
gone so far as to allege that the whole life of Gibraltar
was based on smuggling. The economy of Gibraltar
was, of course, based principally on expenditure by
United Kingdom Government departments, on the
tourist industry and on the entrepot trade. His Govern
ment had given the Spanish Government ample oppor
tunity to take up the question of smuggling and had
invited it to produce evidence; if Spain had a genuine
grtevance , the United Kingdom was always ready to
discuss it. But the hollowness of the charge was most
clearly exposed by the fact that in none of the cornmun
ications addressed to the United Kingdom Government
by the Spanish Government since the adoption of the
consensus had smuggling even been mentioned.

101. For all those reasons, his Government could not
agree to entertain any proposals for discussions
until the situation was restored to normal. That did
not mean that the United Kingdom Government did
not mean to agree to talks, as its positive response
to the Argentine suggestion had demonstrated. If
the Spanish Government was sincere in its desire
to hold talks, it must restore the situation to what
it had been when the United Nations had suggested
such talks. Meanwhile, he reaffirmed that the United
Kingdom Government accepted its obligation to pro
tect the interests of the people of Gibraltar and would
discharge that obligation in whatever way was neoes-



244 General Assembly - Twentieth Session - Fourth Committee
-----------~---_.

sary. The people of Gibraltar were the true and perma
nent community inhabiting the area, with the same
rights as any other colonial people anywhere. The
principle of self-determination applied as much to
them as to any other people. They did not wish to
be tr-ansfer-red to Spanish sovereignty, for they did
not believe that would be in their best interest, and
they would not let anyone else decide for them what
was in their best interest.

Litho in V.N.

102. In oonclus ion, he again rejected the inference
that it was the United Kingdom that had been unwil.Iing
to negotiate and restated his Government's readiness to
entertain proposals for conversations as soon as the
abnormal situation no longer existed at the frontier.
The sooner that obstaole to talks was removed, the
better for all concerned.

The meeting rose at 7.30 p.m,

77401-April1966-2.250




